
Cabinet 
 
  

 
Please contact: Emma Denny 
 
Please email: emma.denny@north-norfolk.gov.uk 
Please Direct Dial on: 01263 516010 
 
Friday, 9 July 2021 
 
A special meeting of the Cabinet of North Norfolk District Council will be held in the Council Chamber - 
Council Offices on Monday, 19 July 2021 at 2.00 pm. 
 
 
At the discretion of the Chairman, a short break will be taken after the meeting has been running for 
approximately one and a half hours 
 

Members of the public who wish to ask a question or speak on an agenda item must notify Democratic 
Services 24 hours in advance of the meeting and are requested to arrive at least 15 minutes before the 
start of the meeting. It will not be possible to accommodate requests after that time. Further information 
on the procedure for public speaking can be obtained from Democratic Services, Tel:01263 516010, 
Email:emma.denny@north-norfolk.gov.uk. 
 
The meeting will be live-streamed: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCsShJeAVZMS0kSWcz-WyEzg 
 
Anyone attending this meeting may take photographs, film or audio-record the proceedings and report 
on the meeting.  Anyone wishing to do so should inform the Chairman.  If you are a member of the 
public and you wish to speak on an item on the agenda, please be aware that you may be filmed or 
photographed. 

 
 
 
Emma Denny 
Democratic Services Manager 
 
To: Mrs W Fredericks, Mrs S Bütikofer, Mrs A Fitch-Tillett, Ms V Gay, Mr R Kershaw, Mr N Lloyd, 
Mr E Seward, Miss L Shires and Mr J Toye 
 
All other Members of the Council for information. 
Members of the Management Team, appropriate Officers, Press and Public 

 

If you have any special requirements in order 
to attend this meeting, please let us know in advance 

If you would like any document in large print, audio, Braille, alternative format or in 
a different language please contact us 

 
Chief Executive: Steve Blatch 

Tel 01263 513811  Fax  01263 515042  Minicom  01263 516005 
Email  districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk  Web site  www.north-norfolk.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCsShJeAVZMS0kSWcz-WyEzg
mailto:districtcouncil@north-norfolk.gov.uk


A G E N D A 
 

1.   TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND STATEMENTS 
 

 

 To receive questions and statements from the public, if any. 
 

 

3.   ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS 
 

 

 To determine any other items of business which the Chairman decides 
should be considered as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 
100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972 
 

 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

1 - 2 

 Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may 
have in any of the following items on the agenda. The Code of Conduct 
for Members requires that declarations include the nature of the interest 
and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest (see attached 
guidance and flowchart) 
 

 

5.   DISPOSAL OF A PROPERTY 
 

3 - 8 

 Summary: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Options considered: 

The Council acquired a mixed use property in 
2017 and part of which has been let for 
holiday accommodation.  The property has 
not been performing as anticipated and is not 
likely to reach the desired financial return in 
the future and therefore a sale of the property 
is proposed.  
 
The property has been advertised on the 
open market and a number of offers have 
been received. Officers are now seeking 
authority to sell the property.  
 
The village shop does not form part of this 
proposal and is to be retained with tenant 
remaining.   
 
The Council could retain the property, 
however it does not produce the financial 
returns required and does not support the 
Councils Corporate Plan objectives.  
 

Conclusions: 
 

During ownership the performance of the 
holiday let property has been monitored and 
whilst some improvements have been 
gained, overall the property has not secured 
the level of income and financial return 
envisaged. This has been further impacted by 
the need to close the property during the 
national lockdown.   
 

 



As financial returns in accordance with the 
Councils Asset Management Plan are not 
being achieved, it is proposed to sell this part 
of the property and to retain the community 
shop and tenant on the existing lease terms. 
 
Following the property having being 
advertised for sale on the open market best 
and final offers have been received.  These 
offers have been qualified and assessed.   
Acceptance of the recommended offer will 
result in a capital receipt for the Council upon 
legal completion.  
 

Recommendations: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reasons for  
Recommendations: 
 

It is recommended that Cabinet approve 
the disposal of the property as outlined in 
the exempt appendix.  
 
Should there be any further changes to 
the offer made, to delegate to the s151 
officer, in consultation with the portfolio 
holder, the ability to dispose of the 
property: 

 To a different buyer at the same sum 
or 

 For any value exceeding the original 
sale price 

 At a reduction of up to 10% of the 
agreed sale price  

 Allowing for any additional costs 
incurred  

 
 
The disposal is in accordance with the 
Council’s Disposal policy and the offer is 
deemed to be the best financial consideration 
reasonably obtainable at the current time. 

 
  

Cabinet Member(s) 
Cllr E Seward 

Ward(s) affected 
Itteringham/Erpingham 

Contact Officer, telephone number and email: 
Renata Garfoot, Asset Strategy Manager.   Tel. 01263 516086 
Renata.garfoot@north-norfolk.gov.uk 
 

6.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 

 To pass the following resolution: 
“That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 2 & 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A (as 
amended) to the Act.” 
 

 

mailto:Renata.garfoot@north-norfolk.gov.uk


7.   PRIVATE BUSINESS 
 

 



 

Declarations of Interest at Meetings 

 
 

 

When declaring an interest at a meeting, Members are asked to indicate whether their interest in the matter is 
pecuniary, or if the matter relates to, or affects a pecuniary interest they have, or if it is another type of interest 
Members are required to identify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to which it relates. In the case 
of other interests, the member may speak and vote. If it is a pecuniary interest, the member must withdraw 
from the meeting when it is discussed. If it affects or relates to a pecuniary interest the member has, they have 
the right to make representations to the meeting as a member of the public but must then withdraw from the 
meeting. 

 
Have you declared the interest in the register of interests as a pecuniary interest? If Yes, you will need to 
withdraw from the room when it is discussed. 

 

Does the interest directly: 
1. Affect yours, or your spouse / partner’s financial position? 
2. Relate to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation to you 

or your spouse / partner? 
3. Relate to a contract you, or your spouse / partner have with the Council 
4. Affect land you or your spouse / partner own 
5. Affect a company that you or your partner own, or have a shareholding in 

If the answer is “yes” to any of the above, it is likely to be pecuniary. 

Please refer to the guidance given on declaring pecuniary interests in the register of interest forms. If you have 
a pecuniary interest, you will need to inform the meeting and then withdraw from the room when it is 
discussed. If it has not been previously declared, you will also need to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 
days. 

Does the interest indirectly affect or relate to any pecuniary interest you have already declared, or an interest 
you have identified at 1-5 above? 

 

If yes, you need to inform the meeting. When it is discussed, you will have the right to make representations 
to the meeting as a member of the public, but must then withdraw from the meeting. 

Is the interest not related to any of the above? If so, it is likely to be another interest. You will need to declare 
the interest, but may participate in discussion and voting on the item. 

Have you made any statements or undertaken any actions that would indicate that you have a closed mind on 
a matter under discussion? If so, you may be predetermined on the issue; you will need to inform the meeting 
and when it is discussed, you will have the right to make representations to the meeting as a member of the 
public, but must then withdraw from the meeting. 

 
 

FOR GUIDANCE REFER TO THE FLOWCHART OVERLEAF 
 

PLEASE REFER ANY QUERIES TO THE MONITORING OFFICER IN THE FIRST INSTANCE 
 

DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE MEMBERS SHOULD ALSO REFER TO THE PLANNING PROTOCOL  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 

Declarations of Interest at Meetings 

What matters are being discussed at the meeting? 

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART – QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF 
 
 

NO 

YES 

 

The interest is pecuniary – 
disclose the interest, 

withdraw from the meeting 
by leaving the room. Do not 
try to improperly influence 

the decision 

If you have not 
already done so, 

notify the 
Monitoring 

Officer to update 
your declaration 

of interests 

The interest is related to a 
pecuniary interest. Disclose 
the interest at the meeting. 

You may make representation 
as a member of the public, 
but then withdraw from the 

room 

YES 

NO 

The interest is not pecuniary 
nor affects your pecuniary 

interests. Disclose the interest 
at the meeting. You may 

participate in the meeting and 
vote 

YES 

 

Do any relate to an interest I have? 
 

A Have I declared it as a pecuniary interest? 
OR 
B Does it directly affect me, my partner or spouse’s financial position, in 

particular: 

 employment, employers or businesses; 
 companies in which they are a director or where they have a shareholding of more than 

£25,000 face value or more than 1% of nominal shareholding; 
 land or leases they own or hold; 
 contracts, licenses, approvals or consents 

 
Have I declared the interest as an 
‘other’ interest on my declaration 
of interest form? OR 

 

Does it relate to a matter 
highlighted at B that impacts upon 
my family or a close associate? 
OR 

 
Does it affect an organisation I am 
involved with or a member of? OR 

 

Is it a matter I have been, or have 
lobbied on? 

Does the matter indirectly affect or relate 
to a pecuniary interest I have declared, or 
a matter noted at B above? 

You are unlikely to have 
an interest. You do not 

need to do anything 
further. 

No 

O
th

e
r 

In
te

re
s
t 

R
e
la

te
d
 P

e
c
u
n
ia

ry
 

P
e
c
u
n
ia

ry
 I
n
te

re
s
t 

Page 2



 

 

 
 
 

Disposal of property  
 

Summary: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Options considered: 

The Council acquired a mixed use property in 2017 and 
part of which has been let for holiday accommodation.  
The property has not been performing as anticipated 
and is not likely to reach the desired financial return in 
the future and therefore a sale of the property is 
proposed.  
 
The property has been advertised on the open market 
and a number of offers have been received. Officers are 
now seeking authority to sell the property.  
 
The village shop does not form part of this proposal and 
is to be retained with tenant remaining.   
 
The Council could retain the property, however it does 
not produce the financial returns required and does not 
support the Councils Corporate Plan objectives.  
 

Conclusions: 
 

During ownership the performance of the holiday let 
property has been monitored and whilst some 
improvements have been gained, overall the property 
has not secured the level of income and financial return 
envisaged. This has been further impacted by the need 
to close the property during the national lockdown.   
 
As financial returns in accordance with the Councils 
Asset Management Plan are not being achieved, it is 
proposed to sell this part of the property and to retain 
the community shop and tenant on the existing lease 
terms. 
 
Following the property having being advertised for sale 
on the open market best and final offers have been 
received.  These offers have been qualified and 
assessed.   Acceptance of the recommended offer will 
result in a capital receipt for the Council upon legal 
completion.  
 

Recommendations: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

It is recommended to Cabinet to approve the 
disposal of the property as outlined in the exempt 
appendix.  
 
Should there be any further changes to the offer 
made, to delegate to the s151 officer, in consultation 
with the portfolio holder, the ability to dispose of the 
property: 

 To a different buyer at the same sum or 

 For any value exceeding the original sale price 

 At a reduction of up to 10% of the agreed sale 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 
 
 
 
Reasons for  
Recommendations: 
 

price  

 Allowing for any additional costs incurred  
 
 
The disposal is in accordance with the Council’s 
Disposal policy and the offer is deemed to be the best 
financial consideration reasonably obtainable at the 
current time. 

 
  

Cabinet Member(s) 
Cllr E Seward 

Ward(s) affected 
Itteringham/Erpingham 

Contact Officer, telephone number and email: 
Renata Garfoot, Asset Strategy Manager.   Tel. 01263 516086 
Renata.garfoot@north-norfolk.gov.uk 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Council acquired a mixed use property during 2017/18 comprising of a 

private residential property and attached village shop which was being 
successfully run by a community organisation.   

  
1.2 The village shop is let to the community group under a formal lease 

arrangement and the residential part of the property which had previously 
been a family home was fully furnished and let for holiday accommodation 
from 2018.  
 

1.3 Whilst the residential property was marketed through a specialist holiday 
letting company and it secured a number of bookings, the property had 
periods of vacancies and was also closed during the Government national 
lockdown during 2020 – 2021, when required.  These void periods have 
impacted on its financial return and income to the Council.  
 

1.4 Officers have sought to reduce voids and costs alongside investigating 
opportunities to increase income during ownership and whilst there has been 
an improvement it is unlikely to reach the financial investment anticipated.   
 

1.5 Whilst the Council intended to monitor its performance over a 5 year period, 
as the property does not support the Councils Corporate Plan objectives, it is 
not meeting the financial return anticipated and is not likely to, in accordance 
with the Council’s Asset Management Plan, It was proposed to sell the 
residential element of the property during 2021.  
 

1.6 Following this, the due notice period was given to the holiday let company 
and it is expected that the majority of the bookings will go ahead prior to legal 
completion of the sale.  
 

1.7 It is intended that the community shop will be retained by the Council with 
tenant remaining under the existing lease terms and therefore the shop will 
not form part of the proposed disposal.  

 

2. Disposal  
 

Page 4

mailto:Renata.garfoot@north-norfolk.gov.uk


 

 

2.1 Officers appointed an experienced and local estate agent, following a 
procurement exercise and has been advertising the freehold property for sale 
on the open market during 2021.  
 

2.2 During this time there have been a number of viewings which has resulted in 
offers being made by interested parties.  Best and final offers been requested 
and subsequently been qualified by the Agents and assessed by the Estates 
Team. 

 
2.3 The Estates Team recommend the offer as described in the exempt appendix 

is accepted. 
 

2.4 The proposed disposal of the property is in accordance with the Councils 
Disposal policy, which provides a framework through which the Council can 
effectively manage its portfolio.   
 

2.5 The Council will seek to dispose of its assets where it is in the best interest of 
the Council.  In the case of this property, the asset does not contribute to the 
delivery of Council services and does not meet the required return.  

 

3. Corporate Plan Objectives 
 
3.1 The proposed disposal would contribute to the Financial Sustainability and 

Growth Corporate Plan Objective as the sale of the property will contribute to 
the financial sustainability of the Council.  

4. Medium Term Financial Strategy 

4.1 The sale of the property will generate a capital receipt as described in the 
exempt appendix, which will support the Councils Medium Term Financial 
Strategy.   

5. Financial and Resource Implications 

5.1  Financial details regarding the offer are included in the exempt appendix.  

5.2 The offer which is recommended is sufficient to recover all costs incurred with 
owning and managing the property.  

6. Legal Implications 

6.1 The Council will appoint a residential conveyancing solicitor to act on behalf 
of the Council in undertaking the transaction and to provide legal advice.   

6.2 The offer made subject to contract and is not legally binding until exchange of 
contracts. 

7. Risks 

7.1 There is a risk that the sale of the property does not proceed through to legal 
completion and the property will need to be remarketed. At the current time 
the property market is buoyant and therefore whilst this would cause a delay 
at this point in time, it is not envisaged to have a detrimental impact.  

7.2 There is a risk that property values may reduce due to further negotiation 
from the purchaser following a survey of the property for example or if 
remarketing recommenced following an abortive sale.  This could cause 
negative financial impact in these scenarios.  If this occurred, the Council 
could continue accept a lower price, or retain and let the property until a time 
when values or demand improves. 

Page 5



 

 

 

8. Sustainability 

9.1 There are no direct sustainability implications with the proposed disposal.  

9. Climate / Carbon impact 

10.1 There are no direct climate or carbon impact with the proposed disposal. 

10. Equality and Diversity 

11.1 There are no direct equality and diversity implications with the proposed 
disposal. 

11. Section 17 Crime and Disorder considerations 

12.1 There are no direct crime and disorder considerations with this proposal. 
 

12. Conclusion and Recommendations 

12.1 The Council acquired a mixed use property in 2017 with village shop that is 
let to a community organisation and a residential part which is let as holiday 
accommodation.   

 
12.2 During this time the performance of the holiday let property has been 

monitored and whilst some improvements have been gained, overall the 
property has not secured the level of income and financial return envisaged. 
This has been further impacted by the need to close the property during the 
national lockdown.   

 
12.3  As financial returns in accordance with the Councils Asset Management Plan 

are not being achieved and are not likely too, it is proposed to sell this part 
and to retain the community shop and tenant on the existing lease terms.  

 
12.3 It is recommended to Cabinet to approve the disposal of the property as 

outlined in the exempt appendix.  
 

Page 6



Document is Restricted

Page 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Disposal of a Property
	Summary of Bids Exempt Appendix amended


